
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Monica Bell, Democratic Services (01254) 380114 
Email:  monica.bell@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Friday, 25th August 2017 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Thursday, 7 September 2017 at 10.00 am, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Abdul Khan 
 
Councillors:  Jenny Molineux, Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Terry Hurn, Tim O'Kane and 
Paddy Short 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 23rd March 2017 for approval as a correct record. 

Recommended - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 
correct record. 

 

3.   Appointment of Co-optees  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
To re-appoint Co-opted Members on to the Committee. 

Recommended - That Council be recommended to re-appoint Ian 
Ormerod and Paul Barton as Co-optees to the 
Committee. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

4.   Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 2017-18  (Pages 9 - 12) 
 
To approve the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 
2017/18 and to provide the Committee with feedback from Cabinet. 

Recommended - That the feedback provided by Cabinet on the draft 
2017/18 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes be 
noted and the 2017/18 Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Work Programme be approved. 

 

5.   Legal and Democratic Services  -  Service Plan Update  (Pages 13 - 28) 
 
To present an update on progress against service plans for Legal and Democratic 
Services. 
 

6.   National Non Domestic Rates Revaluation Support Scheme  (Pages 29 - 62) 
 
To provide the Committee with details of the proposed National Non Domestic Rates 
Revaluation Support Scheme. 

Recommended (1) That the contents of the report be noted and the 
Committee comment accordingly;  

 (2) That it be noted that the proposed Discretionary 
Revaluation Relief Scheme has not yet been 
presented to Council for approval (this is scheduled 
for 21st September 2017);  and, 

 (3) That it be noted that it is proposed that the Deputy 
Chief Executive be given delegated powers to 
consider extending the scope of the scheme in order 
to allocate unclaimed funds. 

 

 
 



 
232 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 23rd March, 2017 

 
Present:  Councillor Abdul Khan (in the Chair),  

Councillors Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button and Terry Hurn 
 
Mr. Paul Barton (Co-optee) 
 

In Attendance: Mr. Steve Tanti, Chief Executive of Hyndburn Leisure 

  

Apologies: Councillors Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Paddy Short and Ian Ormerod 
(Co-optee) 
 

 
434 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Jenny Molineux, Tim O’Kane and 
Paddy Short and from Mr. Ian Ormerod (Co-optee). 
 

435 Substitution 
 
Councillor June Harrison attended the meeting as substitute representative for Councillor 
Jenny Molineux. 
 

436 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

437 Minutes of Meetings 
 
The Minutes of the meetings of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
15th December 2016 and 14th February 2017 were submitted for approval as correct 
records. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as correct 

records. 
 

438 Hyndburn Leisure Financial Report 
 
Mr. Steve Tanti (Chief Executive of Hyndburn Leisure) submitted an update report relating 
to Hyndburn Leisure’s Financial Position, as previously requested by the Committee.  Mr. 
Tanti reported on the following:- 
 

 Hyndburn Leisure Responsibilities 

 Summary of 2015/16 Performance 

 Summary of Financial Position at 31st January 2017 

 Accrington Town Hall Summary to 31st December 2016 

 Further Investment Plan 
 
Responses were given in relation to the following issues raised by the Committee:- 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
233 

 Staff Employed 
 Payroll Budget 
 Accrington Town Hall Financial Performance 
 Increased Use of Accrington Town Hall 
 Accrington Town Hall Financial Forecasts for Next Three Years 
 Effect of THI Scheme and Minimising Impact  
 Success of Previous Capital Projects 
 Cost of and Expected Income for Soft Play Centre 
 Decision to Develop Soft Play Centre  
 Marketing of Active Projects and the Healthy Lifestyles Team 
 Availability of Information for People Not Accessing Social Media 
 Healthy Lifestyles Funding 
 Cessation of GP Referral Funding 
 Sport Development in Hyndburn and Securement of External Funding 
 Leisure Trust Sustainability 
 Reduction in Grant from Hyndburn Borough Council 
 Reasons for Gradual Decline in Attendances at Leisure Centre 
 Reasons for Swimming Pool Closures 
 Fund Raising for Disabled Play Park 
 Leisure Centre Facilities for the Disabled 

 
The Chair drew attention to comments received from Councillor Judith Addison in regard to 
Hyndburn Leisure’s Income and Expenditure Account.   

Resolved (1) That the report be noted and the Chief Executive of 
Hyndburn Leisure be requested to submit a further 
report on the financial position and sustainability of 
Hyndburn Leisure to the Committee in March 2017; 

 (2) That Hyndburn Leisure be provided with relevant dates 
relating to work being undertaken on the  Accrington 
Town Square THI  Scheme in order to assist in event 
planning at Accrington Town Hall;  and,  

 (3) That, on behalf of the Council, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Officer be requested to write to Hyndburn 
Leisure Employees thanking them for the work 
undertaken by them during the last 12 months. 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 4



 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 07 September 2017 

REPORT OF: Cllr Abdul Khan, Chair of the Resources Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Appointment of Co-optees 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To reappoint Co-opted Members on to the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committee recommends to Council that Ian Ormerod and Paul Barton are 

reappointed as Co-optees to the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Councils Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule C2 states: 
 

Each overview and scrutiny committee may appoint up to three members of the public, 
who the committee deems to have relevant experience of topics related to that scrutiny 
committee, as non-voting co-optees.  
 
(i) Applications may be invited to fill a vacancy for a co-opted member at the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee; applications may also be received directly from members of 
the public.  

 
(ii) The application will be considered first at the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. The Committee will consider the knowledge and experience of the 
applicant relevant to the terms of reference or work programme of the Committee.  

 
(iii) The intention is that such co-optees will be non-political.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



 

 
(iv) If the majority of the Overview and Scrutiny members support the appointment of 
the applicant, the proposed appointment will be presented to Council for approval.  

 
3.2 Ian Ormerod is a former Councillor who has been co-opted to this Committee since the 

Council introduced co-optees to Scrutiny in 2011. Paul Barton is a former Councillor 
who was co-opted on to this Committee last year. 

 
3.3 No further applications or nominations for co-optees have been received. 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 It is a requirement of the Constitution that the Committee considers applications from 

members of the public to be co-opted on to the Committee. Any alternative would first 
require a change to the Constitution. 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 None 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

None 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

None 

Assessment of risk 
 

None 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

Not Applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 None 
 
 
 
 

Page 6

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; 

DATE: 6th September 2017; 7th September 2017 

REPORT AUTHOR: Ben Caulfield, Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To approve the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes for 2017/18 and provide the 

Committees with feedback from Cabinet. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committees notes the feedback provided by Cabinet on the Draft 2017/18 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes. 
 
2.2 That the Committees formally approve their 2017/18 Overview and Scrutiny Work 

Programmes. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The following report of Overview and Scrutiny was submitted to Cabinet on 19th July 

2017 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 
 
3.2 According to the Council’s Constitution, a draft O & S work programme should be 

submitted for comment to Cabinet. Draft work programmes for the Resources and the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committees were submitted to 
Cabinet on 19th July 

 
3.3 The Work Programmes for both Committees were noted with no requests for changes 

received from Cabinet. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4.



 

3.4 Work Programmes for the Resources and the Communities and Wellbeing Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees are in appendix 1. 

 
3.5 Members should note that the Work Programme is not fixed and may be added to at 

any time of the year with the agreement of the relevant Committee. 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable to this report 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 All Councillors and Service Heads were given the opportunity to contribute to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None arising from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Agenda, reports and minutes of Cabinet on 19th July 2017  

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2187&Ver=4 

 
 
  

Page 10

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2187&Ver=4


 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 2017/18 
 

  
Draft Resources Work Programme 2017/18 
 
 

 
Meeting Date 
 

 
Work Topics  

 
13

th
  July 

 
- Meeting Cancelled 

 
 
 
 

 
7

th
  Sept 

 
- Legal and Democratic Services Business Plan (Jane Ellis / Cllr Molineux) 

- IT Business Plan (Scott Gardner / Cllr Molineux) 

- IT Report – update on progress against recommendation made by Scrutiny in 

2016/17 (Scott Gardner / Cllr Molineux) 

 
 

 
26

th
  October 

 
- Town Centre Update Report (Including Accrington Market Hall) (Cllr Cleary / 

Stuart Sambrook) 

- Asset Disposal Update (Cllr Cleary / Mark Hoyle / Helen McCue-Melling) 

 

 
14th December 

 

- Environmental Services Business Plan (Steve Riley / Cllr Cox) 

- Changes to Recycling Services (Steve Riley / Cllr Cox) 

 
 
 
 

 
25th January 

 
- Accountancy Business Plan (Stephen Brindle / Cllr Molineux) 

- Home Technology Scheme (Kirsten Burnett / Cllr Molineux) 

- Marketing and Public Engagement (Mike Walker/Cathy Kierans) 

 
 

 
13

th
 February  

 
Budget – Joe McIntyre/Cllr Molineux 
 
 
 
 

 
22

nd
 March  

 
- Planning Business Plan (Simon Prideaux / Cllr Parkinson) 

- Planning – Major Developments in Hyndburn (Simon Prideaux / Cllr Parkinson) 

- Hyndburn Leisure Financial Update – (Steve Tanti / Cllr Moss) 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 11



 

 Draft Communities and Wellbeing Work Programme 2016/17 
 

 
Meeting date 

 
Work topics 

15
th
 August  - Mersey Care Update (Meeting Cancelled - Item to be rescheduled) 

 
 
 
 

 
6

th
 September 

 
- Disabled Facility Grants (Helen McCue-Melling / Cllr Cleary) 

- DLA/PIPs claimants in Hyndburn (DWP) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
25

th
 October 

 
 

- Veterans Association UK 

- Hyndburn Homes Veterans Work 

 
 
 
 
 

 
20

th
 December 

 
 

- DWP report on employment in Hyndburn (including quality of jobs) 

- Update on the development of the Mosque on Grimshaw Street 

 
 
 
 
 

 
31

st
 January 

 
 

- Evergreen School Update  

 
 
 
 

28
rd

  March   
 
Crime and Disorder Meeting 

- Effects of the loss of neighbourhood policing 

- Violent Crime 

- PREVENT 

 
 
 

 

Page 12



REPORT TO: Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Resources 

DATE: 07 September 2017 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Gareth Molineux - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Jane Ellis 

TITLE OF REPORT: Review of business plans 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To present an update on progress against business plans for Legal & Democratic 

Services 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Committee notes the report 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Legal & Democratic Services comprises the following service areas: 

Legal Services 

Licensing 

Elections 

HR 

Corporate Support (which comprises member services, the mayoralty, the policy team, 
communications, area funding and FOI) 

Local land charges 

3.2     A summary of the performance of the various teams, and their achievement of key 
tasks, is attached to this report. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5.



 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Not applicable 
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None 
Legal & Democratic Services operated within 
its budget for 2016/17 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

None 

Assessment of risk 
 

No risks identified 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Corporate Support Service Update 
Service Overview 
The Corporate Support Service incorporates Democratic Services, Marketing & Communications, Mayoralty, 
PA’s, Partnerships and Policy. Following the retirement of the Democratic Services Manager in January 2017 the 
service was created by merging the Policy, Partnerships and PA Team with the Democratic Services Team. The 
service comprises 7 full time members of staff and 4 part-time members of staff.  In addition there is currently 1 
vacant post (Principal Partnerships Officer). At present there are no plans to fill this post with support being 
bought in from Burnley Borough Council to cover the statutory Community Safety Partnership elements of this 
vacant post. 
 

Democratic Services 
Democratic Services Team provides professional support and advice to those involved in the formal decision 
making processes of the council.  
The team provides efficient, transparent and accountable democratic governance to our customers, run to high 
standards of conduct. The work of the team includes arranging, attending and minuting a range of formal and 
informal meetings; developing and arranging training for councillors to equip them to carry out their role; 
ensuring councillors receive sufficient and easy-to-understand information in the correct format to enable them to 
make informed decisions; maintaining the forward plan of key decisions and ensuring it is available to the public; 
managing the appointment of councillors to sit on a range of external agencies and outside bodies and ensuring 
they receive the support they require for this; and maintaining the register of members’ interests. 
 
The team also delivers a programme of civic events, manages Freedom of Information requests and administers 
the Area Councils Grants Scheme.  
 

Administration of 
constituted 
committees, boards 
etc and other non-
constituted meetings 

In 2017/18 the Democratic Services Team will support 44 timetabled constituted 
committee meetings. In addition there are 4 cabinet committees, 7 other committees / 
sub-committees and 11 constituted panels / working groups that may call ad-hoc 
meetings throughout the year that the team will provide support for. 
 
Outside the constituted meetings the team also provides support for a number of other 
meetings including Management Team and the Globe Partnership. 

Civic Events The service delivers a programme of Civic Events throughout year ranging from 
relatively straightforward events such as Merchant Navy Day to more complex events 
such as the annual mayor making event. In the current calendar year the following 
events have been successfully delivered: 

 Mayor’s Charity Ball 

 Commonwealth Day 

 St. Georges Day 

 Mayor Making 

 Armed Forces Day Service 

 Somme Memorial day Service 
The events programme also includes the commemoration events for centenary of 
WW1. Planning has commenced on the 2018 commemoration events.  
 
Linked in to the WW1 centenary commemorations is the national project to 
commemorate those soldiers in WW1 who were awarded a VC. The project will see a 
paving stone bearing the soldiers name laid in the town where they were born. We 
recently held a successful event  to commemorate Rishton born Hardy Parsons who 
received a VC for gallantry in the face of the enemy at Epehy, France 21st August 
1917. 

Administration of Area 
Council Grants 

The service administers the Area Council’s Grant Funding programme. In the 2016/17 
27 funding applications were dealt with. 

Freedom of 
Information Requests 

The Freedom of Information (FOI) Act 2000 entitles members to request information 
held by local authorities. There are statutory timescales for responding to FOI requests. 
The Democratic Services Team is responsible for ensuring all FOI requests are dealt 
with in accordance with the statutory requirements. 
 

Page 15



In 2016/17 the team dealt with 693 FOI requests and in the current financial year the 
team has dealt with over 200 requests up to the end of July. 

Mayoralty 
The Mayoralty Service provides a day to day service for all matters relating to the Mayor and Deputy Mayor to 
ensure correct procedures and protocols are maintained. The service is responsible for the maintenance of the 
Mayor’s diary, answering correspondence, obtaining background information on events, advising on this 
information, organising and assisting the organisation of Civic and Ceremonial events, ensuring that the Mayor 
and Deputy Mayor attend all events scheduled and have the necessary support whilst attending scheduled 
events, the maintenance and safekeeping of insignia of the Office of the Mayor and the Mayoral car and 
managing the Mayoral Charity. 

Mayoral Engagements 
From July 2016 to June 2017 the service provided support to the Mayor and Deputy 

Mayor for 225 events. 

Mayor Making and 
Freedom of the 
Borough 

In May the service managed the annual mayor making event. For 2017 the event also 
included an award of Honorary Freeman. This high profile civic event includes a 
ceremonial Council meeting, Parade, Church Service and Civic Reception. In 2017 120 
guests attended the event. 

Mayor’s Charity Ball The service provides support to the Mayor’s Charity Committee for the Annual Charity 
Ball. For 2017 the work of the service area included booking the venue, arranging 
caterers, design and printing of event material such as tickets, posters, table cards etc., 
guest administration and ancillary support on the night of the event. For 2017 over 150 
guests attended the event. 

Miscellaneous Each year the Council receives a number of invites for the Royal Garden Parties. The 
service ensures the necessary arrangements are made to ensure these invitations are 
taken up. For 2017 the new Honorary Freeman and his guest attended the event. 
 
The service introduced new measures to improve the safety of the Civic Attendant. The 
attendants now use a Lone Worker Monitoring Service that monitors them whilst they 
are on duty. 

  

Page 16



Overview and Scrutiny 
Hyndburn Council’s Overview and scrutiny committees develop and review policy and make recommendations 
to the council. They also manage processes of ‘external scrutiny’, which look at issues which lie outside the 
council’s responsibilities. 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Work Programme 

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer supports the 2 O&S committees in developing and 
delivering its annual Work Programme, ensuring effective scrutiny is delivered across 
a number of internal services and external organisations. In 2016/17 the committees 
scrutinised 17 major topic areas, 4 Council Service Plans and had 1 Call-In. 19 
Scrutiny recommendations were approved by Cabinet/Council and a further 18 
recommendations were sent to external organisations including LCC and NHS 
England.  

Members Development Briefing sessions held with all new Councillors and “new to Scrutiny” Councillors. 
External training provided to all members in September 2017. 

Marketing and Communications 
The service provides a professional marketing and communications function that handles both internal and 
external communications. The service promotes the work of the Council, liaises with the media and provides 
support to councillors and officers when dealing with the media. 

Media Relations Proactive and reactive media relations work including producing media releases, 
arranging photo opportunities and press launches, print and broadcast media 
interviews, supporting Councillors, media briefings, helping the press with their 
enquiries and issuing statements in response. Producing a forward agenda of media 
events in annual PR.  

Social media and 
website 

Posting regular news items on the Council’s Facebook and Twitter accounts and 
website 

Promotions Working with the Graphic Designer copywriting for brochures, posters, adverts in print 
and online 

Events  Pre and post event promotion plus being part of the organisation team at a number of 
events annually including high profile events such as events commemorating the 
centenary of WW1. 
 
Part of the organisation team of the Big Thank You annual staff awards ceremony.  

Internal 
communications 

Communication with staff across the Council via a number of communications tools 
including  4 staff newsletters each year, regular news in the loos promos, via 
Newsround 6 weekly staff briefings, CE bulletin 

Special projects Promotion work around the centenary of the first world war and the Accrington Pals, 
including installation of revamped Accrington Pals Room, work on the Pals wrap on 
Broadway. 

  

Page 17



Policy 
The Policy Team provides policy and research support to Cabinet members and other councillors, management 
team and other service areas. The Team also represents the council at a range of external meetings. 

Health  The Public Health Offer at LCC – attendance at meetings, making sure Hyndburn 
and Districts are involved and credited for the work we are doing. 

 Pennine Lancs Prevention Steering Group – attendance at meetings, helping to 
develop the business cases for physical activity, Adverse Childhood Experiences 
(ACEs) and Self Care. (There are other business cases for Housing, and 
Transforming lives – Fiona G is more involved in these than me.) 

 Hyndburn CCG Steering Group (to support Munsif and as district rep) service 
redesign, New Model of Primary Care (development work)  

 Influencing new Primary Care arrangements for Accrington Victoria GP Walk-in 
Centre.  

 Supporting the development of a Community Health Project and assisting the 
CCG with the establishment of a Community Partnership 

 Providing evidence for social prescribing – this is linked to the CCG initiative to 
enhance community resources – we are helping to ensure this is fit for purpose. 

 Monitoring progress on the Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) 
progress and providing briefings to the Leader of the Council. 

 Health and Wellbeing Partnership – attendance and to support portfolio holder as 
district rep 

 Putting pressure on CCG and Health Trust regarding the Minor Injuries Unit as 
directed by the Portfolio Holder 

 Attended and presented to Hyndburn Integrated Neighbourhood Team regarding 
Council Services and access. 

Dementia  The Council has made a commitment to supporting the work of the Dementia 
Action Alliance and working towards a dementia friendly borough. The service 
support this through: 

 Representing the Council on the Dementia Action Alliance 

 Provided communications support for the Hyndburn Dementia Hub 

 Set up and managed Dementia Friendly Training for staff and partners 

 Submitted regular Dementia update reports to Full Council 

 Raised awareness of dementia and dementia support through Newsround, 
Hyndsight and News in the Loos 

 Liaised with and booked the Alzheimer’s Society Roadshow in the town centre in 
May. 

Prevent Strategy Prevent is a Government initiative set up in 2006 as part of the wider counter-terrorism 
strategy called CONTEST. Prevent’s aim is to stop people becoming terrorists or 
supporting terrorism. The service ensures the Council is supporting the aims of the 
Prevent strategy by: 

 Representing the Council at the Lancashire Prevent Managers Meeting 

 Inputting in to the review the Prevent Action Plan 

 Ensuring the Council is aware of the latest developments for example: 
o Extreme Right Wing Training - Home Office work to raise awareness of 

XRW groups and the changing picture locally and nationally. 
o Digital extremism: raising awareness of how social media is used to 

groom young people. 

 Arranging In house Prevent Training for staff. 

  

Page 18



Councillor Support  Provided briefings to Leader of the Council to to support the preparation a 
Hyndburn’s response to the LCC Property / Library review and supported local 
community groups in developing their expressions of interest 

 Preparing a briefing for the Leader of the Council on the public service delivery 
model  

 Provided assistance to Miles regarding information on the Northern 
Powerhouse. 

 Travel safety briefing and contacting travel companies for Miles and Judith 
Addison 

 Quarterly Health and Wellbeing briefings to the Portfolio Holder and Deputy 
Chief Exec  

 Attended the Social Isolation and Loneliness Summit and provided briefings to 
Councillors 

Policy and Research 
Projects 

 Advised on and co-ordinated a response to the Boundary Commission 
Reviews of County Council Electoral Divisions and Parliamentary 
Constituencies 

 Preparing a report on Calderstones leading to a report to O&S 

 Undertook a review of retail premises in Accrington town centre looking at 
property usage and vacant properties  

 Prepared a briefing on the Casey Review which looked into integration and 
opportunity in the country’s most isolated and deprived communities 

Support to Other 
Service Areas 

 Supporting Regeneration and Housing Service with Selective Landlord 
Licensing redesignation including evidence gathering and working with 
consultants to provide low demand evidence reports  

 Working with The Planning Team to develop the Annual Monitoring Reports for 
2015/16 & 2016/17 

 Working with the Licensing Team to gather evidence to support the review of 
the taxi testing policy  

 Working with Corporate Property updating Hyndburn’s Asset Valuation 
database to fit into the national One Public Estate asset mapping programme 

Community Safety 
The Crime and Disorder Act (1998) created Community Safety Partnerships (CSP's) in each local authority area 
and their task is to work together to reduce crime, disorder, substance misuse and reoffending. These 
partnerships are made up of organisations including the Local Authority, Police, Fire and Rescue Service, Health 
and other organisations. 

Administration of the 
Community Safety 
Partnership 

The team is responsible for the administration of the Community Safety Partnership 
which includes: 

 Arranging partnership meetings 

 Providing administrative support for the meetings 

 Managing community safety partnership funding provided by the Police and 
Crime Commissioner including ensuring grant agreements are in place and 
post-project evaluation reports are prepared. 

Preparation and 
Implementation of the 
Community Safety 
Strategic Assessment  

The CSP is required to produce a Strategic Assessment, which is reviewed annually. 
This analyses activity and performance information and is used to identify key issues 
and priorities concerning crime, anti-social behaviour and fear of crime. The service 
leads on the preparation of the strategic assessment which identifies the priorities for 
the year ahead. For 2017 – 18 the priorities include acquisitive crime, domestic 
violence and safeguarding. 

Town Centre 
Shoplifting 

A task and finish group has been set up to look at ways of reducing the levels of 
shoplifting in Accrington Town Centre. The group consists of officers from the Council, 
Police, Probation, Community Rehabilitation Company and NHS drug treatment 
services. A methodology has been developed that will use current statutory tools 
available to us that will restrict prolific shoplifters from entering the town centre. Plans 
are in place to meet with magistrates and county court judges to raise awareness of 
the problems caused by prolific shoplifters and to give them an understanding of the 
methodology we are introducing to help tackle shoplifting in the town centre. 

  

Page 19



Safeguarding Training 
for Taxi Drivers 

Working with the Licensing Team and Accrington and Rossendale College and 
supported by funding from the Police and Crime Commissioner safeguarding training 
was provided to 451 taxi drivers. 

Elections  

Elections Support The team provides support to the Electoral Administration Officer including: 

 Handling routine enquiries relating to the electoral register, postal votes, proxy 
votes, annual canvass 

 Quality checks of postal votes prior to mail out 

 Installation of temporary polling stations 

 Inspection of Polling Stations 

 Setting up of count venue 

 Supporting the media in their attendance and coverage of election counts 

 Assisting with general pre and post-election duties 

Risk Management 

Administration of the 
Corporate Risk 
Management 
Framework and 
Corporate Risk 
Registers 

As part of its governance arrangements the Council monitors a constantly changing 
range of risks. The key risks managed by the council are recorded in the 3 risks 
covering strategic, generic and operational risks. Each risk register is reviewed twice a 
year and the results of the review are reported to Corporate Management Team and 
Audit Committee. 
 
The service is also responsible for ensuring the corporate risk management framework 
remains relevant and fit for purpose. The framework is reviewed annually by external 
audit. 

Miscellaneous 

Projects 

 

Development 
Management DPD 
Examination in Public 

As part of the process of preparing the Local Plan, each document within the plan is 
subject to an ‘Examination in Public’. This is a public inquiry where an independent 
planning inspector tests the document to see if it meets the requirements of the 
relevant legislation and to see if it is ‘sound’. As part of the enquiry process the Council 
has to appoint a programme officer who is independent of the planning service. 
Although the programee office is employed by the Council they work on behalf of and 
under the direction of the planning inspector to administer the public enquiry. In 2017 
the Council submitted its Development Management DPD for Examination in Public 
and the Corporate Support Service provided the programme officer for the enquiry. At 
short notice it also provided support to record the discussions and decisions that were 
made at the public meetings. 

Public Space CCTV The service is currently managing the Public Space CCTV network on behalf of the 
Regeneration and Housing Service. The network consists of 47 cameras across the 
borough. The CCTV monitoring service is delivered in partnership with Blackburn with 
Darwen Council. Over the last 2 years the partnership has expanded to include 
Burnley, Pendle and Preston Councils. To increase capacity a new state of the art 
monitoring facility became operational in January 2018. Tied in with this new facility 
and the expansion of the partnership new contractors for maintenance and monitoring 
have been appointed. In May, due to the closure of Accrington Police Station, it was 
necessary to relocate equipment and connections essential for the CCTV network to 
Accrington Town Hall. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 
Legal Services Update 
 
 

Objective Measure / Target Progress Update 

   

Continual improvement in 
working practices within the 
Legal Section 

Although Lexcel in not officially retained 
the Section continues to work to the 
standard 

Addition of disclaimer and 
reminder email sent out 17 
August 2017.  Review of version 
6 of lexcel and in house self 
assessment checklist – Legal 
Section largely compliant 
particularly as a strategic plan, 
business continuity plan and risk 
register are in the process of 
being updated.  

Work with Regeneration and  
Corporate Property to 
transfer underused land and 
buildings to the community 
sector – Clayton Civic Hall, 
Bank Mill House and ongoing 
issues at Elmfield Hall and 
Churchfield House 

Successful transfer of community assets 
to voluntary/community sector. 
Giving early advice regarding the legal 
and practical issues of  proposed 
transfers and preparing contractual 
arrangements which clearly define 
responsibilities  

Clayton Civic – Advice given, 
waiting for instructions once 
LCC position known; 
Bank Mill House – draft lease 
issued early May 2017.  No 
substantive response from 
Hyndburn Leisure solicitors 
Elmfield Hall – draft lease and 
deed of variation issued June 
2017 – no response from the 
tenant’s solicitor – ongoing 
health and safety concerns 
 

Provide support for 
regeneration activity/projects 
and lottery funded projects 
throughout the Borough 
(Rhyddings Park, THI) 

As far as is possible ensure that all 
projects are properly regulated by 
appropriate agreements/contractual 
arrangements which comply with the 
Council’s procedures and requirements 
 
 

Ongoing 

Provide support for 
significant acquisitions and 
disposals throughout the 
Borough such as Stenier 
Street and the Crown Ground  

Successful and timely completion of 
transfers with the Council’s position 
clearly documented 
 
 

Ongoing 
Steiner Street – LCC interests 
affecting the site are still to be 
acquired.  No instructions 
received as yet; 
Crown Ground – Draft lease 
issued in April 2017 – no 
response from ASFC solicitors 
as yet 

Providing support for good 
governance across the 
Council and the legality of 
decision making 

Support high standards of governance 
within the Council and ensure that the 
requirements and obligations in the 
Constitution are followed whether 
preparing reports, giving advice or 
attending meetings.  
Ensure that appropriate and relevant 
Continuing Professional Development is 
undertaken be this by attendance at 
external courses, reading legislation, 
case law and articles 

Ongoing 
Continuing Professional 
Development targets to be met 
by all Officers. 
Member training for Licensing 
and Planning completed in July 
2017. 

To continue to support the 
Council’s enforcement 

Bring prosecutions where appropriate 
and supported by evidence and  move 

Ongoing 
There is a meeting at Preston 

Page 21



activities eg  scrap metal 
dealers, fly tipping, landlord 
licensing, 

towards the single justice system which 
is being introduced for some private 
prosecution matters in the near future.   

Combined Court Centre 
regarding the introduction of the 
Civil Justice System on 22 
August 2017   

Continuing to collect sundry 
debts due to the Council in 
conjunction with individual 
departments – to encourage 
the instructing department to 
take more responsibility/be 
more accountable for the 
debt due to the Council 

Successful recovery of money due to 
the Council.  Consideration to be given 
to departments being responsible for 
their own debt write off; at present there 
is a corporate pot for writing off 
irrecoverable debts on e-financials 
however as a new system is to be 
introduced later this year then it may be 
possible for more accountability 

Ongoing 
Client meetings to review 
progress and improve process 

To encourage a robust 
approach to the collection of 
outstanding rent on 
Accrington Market 

Following the process agreed by CMT  Ongoing 
Meetings with Market Staff 
regarding levels of indebtedness 
to encourage early intervention 
where problems arise with 
tenants 

To use bankruptcy, 
liquidation and insolvency 
processes where appropriate 
in the recovery of money due 
to the Council for both sundry 
debt matters and Council 
Tax/NNDR 

To use the appropriate process 
available to do all that is possible to 
recover money properly due to the 
Council and to successfully deal with 
issues relating to outstanding tax as 
quickly as possible 

Ongoing 
Casework carried out on 
approximately 30 cases relating 
to outstanding Council Tax in 
March 2016 – no instructions 
received as yet 
Instructed external solicitors in 
respect of T Smith and M Smith 
– bankruptcy – full balance of 
Council Tax and NNDR 
recovered (July/August 2017) 
although costs outstanding 

Working with the Community 
Safety Partnership to target 
issues in Accrington Town 
Centre particularly in respect 
of thefts. 

To use all procedures available to assist 
in the prevention of thefts and, in 
particular, to look at issuing warning 
letters and Community Protection 
Notices where appropriate under the 
Anti Social Behaviour Crime and 
Policing Act 2014.  To encourage the 
consideration and possible use by 
others in the Partnership of Criminal 
Behaviour Orders  

Ongoing. 
Research carried out and advice 
given. GM provided an initial 
letter to be sent out to the 
individuals involved in the 
alleged thefts as a precursor to 
a possible Community 
Protection Notice. 

   

 

 
 
 
 

Page 22



Human Resources - People Strategy Actions and Targets 
 

 

 

Making Hyndburn “The Place To Work” 
Our People Strategy 2014 - 2018 

 
 

 

Our Performance Measures 

1. Achieve employee satisfaction rate of 80% (was 76% in 2014) – 
ACHIEVED 84% 

2. Retain the North West Skills Award – no longer available for renewal 
3. Retain NWEO Member Development Charter – hold Level 2 of Charter 
4. 95% of staff receiving annual PDRs - ACHIEVED 

5. Sickness absence below 8 days per employee- ACHIEVED 5.76 days 
6. Retain the Workplace Wellbeing Award – no longer available in 

Lancs, working on alternative Up & Active aware with Leisure 
7. Retain the Navajo Chartermark – no longer available for renewal 
8. Retain the Two Ticks symbol, “Positive about disability” – amend to 

Disability Confident Employer in next strategy 

 
Creativity: People are engaged and motivated to give their best efforts 

a. Hold Big Thank You Awards and celebrate those 
achieving qualifications 
 

These continue to be held each year and are currently being planned for November 2017.  There has 
again been no event for qualifications this year due to lack of capacity within the HR team. 

b. Promote the benefits of working for HBC and look 
for new ways to make HBC a more attractive 
workplace, especially if no cost 
 

We continue to provide a wide range of benefits, which are brought together in our Benefits Booklet, 
which is reviewed and promoted at least once a year.  We ran the home technology scheme again 
although government changes are making this less attractive and we will keep it under review.  We 
have rerun our cycle to work scheme recently. 
 
Managers have been consulted on extending the flexible working bandwidth at Scaitcliffe House and 
Broadway. 
 

c. Conduct the staff survey every 2 years to track 
staff satisfaction and feedback and act on the results 
 

We ran a much shorter survey in 2016 which showed an increase in overall job satisfaction to 84%.  
A number of actions were taken as a result of the results and the follow-up discussions.  These 
include clarifying managers’ responsibilities, looking at an extended bandwidth for the flexi-time 
scheme, resuming service managers’ meetings and creating “little thank you” cards. 

d. Maintain good working relationships with staff and 
trade unions 
 

There are several ways by which we ensure open communication with staff.  We continue to use the 
JNCC as a regular communication forum and there is also a Safety Improvement Group and Health 
and Safety Committee.  There is regular dialogue with trade union colleagues on issues as they 
arise.  On the whole, negotiation on new policies etc. works well. 

e. Nurture communications and team spirit amongst 
senior and middle managers and between teams 
 

We bring staff together for training and for working groups.  For example, this year a group looked at 
our staff survey results.  We support teams and managers where there are conflicts or significant 
changes. 

f. Communication of corporate progress and Newsround items inform people of issues such as the annual budget and we continue to 

P
age 23



objectives to support employees through the current 
period of change and help build resilience 
 

communicate via Hyndsight and Dave’s bulletin.  An action from the staff survey was for CEO / 
directors to “tour” team meetings and there are examples of this happening. 
 
The consultation on and launch of a new corporate strategy will provide opportunities for 
communication with staff about the overall priorities and objectives.  

Innovation:  People are productive and open to doing things differently to ensure their work contributes to the Council’s priorities 

g. Support the management of overtime costs 
through the provision of relevant information and 
advice of alternatives 
 

A separate report was brought to Management team in 2016 regarding overtime, in connection with 
emerging case law which may impact on future costs.  The agreed approach is reviewed regularly 
and a meeting is arranged for August with the Head of HR, Payroll and Pensions Manager, Head of 
Accountancy and Head of Environmental Services. 

h. Continue to encourage and support employees to 
gain and update their functional skills, in maths, 
English and ICT 
 

This is promoted as part of the PDR and is built into some of our training courses. 

i. Support organisational redesign in line with 
changes to service delivery and resources available 
 

We continue to support restructures, redundancy and redeployment processes. 
 
This has involved an annual letter to all staff inviting applications for ERVR etc.  A decision is needed 
on whether to repeat this in 2017. 

j. Deliver training in skills required to identify and 
implement new ways of working to streamline 
processes, save costs and improve customer 
service, including use of new technology 
 

We ran a programme of customer experience training and training for new and aspiring managers.  
HR will support service managers to roll out changes as they are identified.  Individual training needs 
are identified through PDRs. 

k. Have procedures in place to support increased 
collaborative working with partners and neighbouring 
councils 
 

The excess mileage policy was implemented in May 2014 and other policies and practices requiring 
HR input will be reviewed as necessary and from learning from others.  We continue to take part in 
secondment arrangements and other shared service models.  Increasingly we are sharing training 
with other councils which will also aid more collaborative working. 

l. Support staff to look for ways to generate 
increased income 
 

Heads of service and accountancy staff explore this as part of their budget planning and should 
highlight any learning and development needs through PDRs. 

m. Consider skills, including leadership skills, 
needed for a move to more collaborative working 
and put measures in place to address 
 

This has been factored into our management development programmes.  We are sharing many of 
our training courses, including management training, with other councils, to save costs and provide a 
richer learning environment. 

n. PDRs completed within required timescale and L 
& D needs collated to inform an annual Learning and 
OD plan 
 

Almost all forms were returned within the deadline or a couple of weeks following this.  The training 
bids are being addressed. 

P
age 24



o. Promote the Council’s coaching scheme 
 

We have done this via Newsround and News in the Loos and also by matching coaches with 
participants on management development programmes.  We have partnered with Chorley to offer 
cross-borough coaching. 

p. Look at underlying reasons for sickness absence 
and put measures in place to address these 
 

Regular reports have been brought on this.  Last year saw our lowest ever level of sickness absence 
with 5.76 days and the areas we specifically targeted saw significant reductions. 
 
The H&S Committee and WHAT team will look in detail at this year’s figures to identify any other 
future actions. 

q. Review HR policies and procedures as required to 
remain legally compliant and fit for purpose, with 
training delivered to support their use 
 

Last year we reviewed our Pay, Recruitment and Selection and Learning and Development Policies.  
As usual, we have considered our list of policies this year as part of the PDR process and we plan to 
review the following this year (see pages 5 and 6 of this document).  Some will only require minor 
amendments and will not need to go through Management Team / consultation: 
 Mileage and expenses (following audit) 

 Chief Officer Disciplinary procedure 

 Communications policy 

 Disability equality at work 

 Employee handbook and Benefits Booklet refresh 

 Employee Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 Flexible Working Policy (incl TOIL) 

 Job Re-evaluation Policy 

 Pay Policy 

 Pension Discretion Policy statement 

 Performance Development Review 

 Relocation Policy 

 Self-employment guidelines 

 Workplace smoking policy 

r. Support the development of apprenticeships within 
the Borough 

We have amended our vacancy clearance process to ensure that we consider whether vacant posts 
could be converted into apprenticeships, so that we pay due regard to the new public sector 
apprenticeship duty.  We are paying the apprenticeship levy each month.  We are looking at training 
needs identified through PDRs to see if these could be met through an apprenticeship. 

Resilience: People are healthy, treated with integrity and supported to deal with change 

s. Ensure JE retains its integrity and supports equal 
pay 
 

There have been several instances over the last year of new or revised jobs being evaluated. 

t. Conduct an equal pay audit Work has begun on this.  A template was agreed with other Lancs districts so that we can support 
each other on this work.  The exercise has been delayed because of staffing issues within HR. 

P
age 25



u. Administer pay and pensions according to HMRC 
and statutory and scheme requirements 
 

Payroll continue to pay accurately and on time, including to our external customers.  The 
requirements placed on payroll from HMRC continue to increase. 

v. Promote and support healthy lifestyles including 
nutrition and exercise 
 

We have held a number of activities and these are promoted via Hyndsight etc.  In the last year these 
included the Alexander Technique, meditation, menopause awareness.  We are piloting paid-for 
physiotherapy or osteopathy across the Council. 

w. Continue to ensure that customer first analyses 
are used where appropriate to assess the equality 
impact of decisions and policies 
 

On the whole these are being done as a matter of course and the pre-approval process for reports to 
Council / Cabinet includes checking this. 

x. Produce workforce analyses in line with legal 
requirements and use to identify ways of ensuring 
fairness and moving to a workforce which better 
represents the community of Hyndburn 
 

The up to date workforce report is being completed and will be brought to a future meeting. 

 

P
age 26



Licensing 
 
Key tasks completed 
 
Taxi fees reviewed – new fees advertised and implemented 

Category C and D vehicles removed from licence and checks now carried out for all vehicles 
prior to the grant or renewal of their licence to ensure they do not have Cat C or D status 

CSE training required for all new drivers 

CSE training delivered to around 85% of existing drivers 

Regular roadside taxi enforcement activities carried out with VOSA and the Police 

New gambling policy adopted 

New licensing policy adopted 

Consultation carried out re changes to the existing licensing policy 

Improvements made to arrangements to booking MOT’s 

 
 
Key tasks to be progressed 
 
 
Seek approval for changes to taxi policy following the recent consultation exercise 

Unmet demand survey now due re limit on hackney carriage numbers 

Taxi knowledge test to be improved to make it harder to “learn the test” 

Introduction of online licence applications and renewals 

Develop a data sharing agreement with other Lancashire licensing authorities 

Programme additional enforcement activity for taxi’s and improved arrangements for premises 
inspections  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



Elections 
 
Key tasks completed 
 
2016 EU referendum conducted 

Successful introduction of new staffing arrangements for elections, with support provided by 
the Corporate Support team following the loss of the electoral assistant post  

Electoral register for 2017 published on time 

Implemented the changes required by the LCC boundary review in time for the LCC elections 

2017 LCC elections conducted 

2017 Parliamentary election conducted 

Met all the Electoral Commission performance standards for elections and electoral 
registration in 2016 and 2017 

 

 
 
Key tasks to be progressed 
 
Complete the ongoing canvas and produce the 2018 electoral register on time 

Organise the 2018 Hyndburn BC borough council elections 

Meet all the Electoral Commission performance standards for elections and electoral 
registration in 2018 

Postal vote refresh in accordance with legal requirements 

 

Page 28



Page 1 of 7 
 

REPORT TO: Overview & Scrutiny 

DATE: 07 September 2017 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Gareth Molineux - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Pauline Duckworth, Head of Benefits, Revenues and 
Customer Contact 

TITLE OF REPORT: National Non Domestic Rates Revaluation Support 
Scheme 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To provide Overview and Scrutiny with details of the proposed National Non Domestic 

Rates Revaluation Support Scheme. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 This report requests that Overview and Scrutiny: 
 
2.2 Notes the contents of the report and comments accordingly; 
 
2.3 Notes that the proposed Discretionary Revaluation Relief Scheme has not yet been 

presented to Council for approval – this is scheduled for 21st September 2017; 
 
2.3 Notes that it is proposed that the Deputy Chief Executive is given delegated powers to 

consider extending the scope of the scheme in order to allocate unclaimed funds. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
  
3.1 National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR), or Business Rates are a tax on organisations 

or companies using a building or office space for business purposes.  The calculation 
of an NNDR bill is based on a ‘rateable value’ which is determined by the Valuation 
Office Agency (VOA).  The rateable value is multiplied by one of two rates set by 
Central Government to arrive at the gross NNDR bill before any exemptions or reliefs 
are granted. 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6.



Page 2 of 7 
 

3.2 In April 2017 a new valuation list was implemented nationally with the intention of 
bringing rateable values in line with property market changes since the last valuation 
list was published in 2010.  Nationally, with the exception of London, average NNDR 
bills have reduced as a result of the 2017 revaluation.  Across the North West there 
has been an average 10% reduction and in Hyndburn a 9.3% reduction. 

 
3.3 In the spring 2017 Budget, the Government announced a series of temporary financial 

support schemes for businesses affected by the 2017 revaluation. This includes 
 
1. Supporting Small Businesses Relief 
2. Business Rate Relief Scheme for Pubs 
3. Discretionary Revaluation Relief Scheme  

3.4 To support the third measure above, the Government announced £300 million for local 
councils to finance a Discretionary Revaluation Relief Scheme to support businesses 
affected by the 2017 revaluation.  This extra funding can only be used to support relief 
schemes targeted at businesses facing an increase in their business rates bill following 
the 2017 revaluation.  

 
3.6 The Government’s allocation of funding for Hyndburn is set out below: 
 

Amount of discretionary pot awarded (£000s) 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

100 38 16 2 
 

3.7 When allocating resources the Government has assumed that local authorities will 
provide support only to those businesses that are facing an increase in their bills 
following revaluation – and have made this a condition of the grant.  It further assumes 
that, by and large, more support will be provided to 

 
i. Businesses/ratepayers that face the most significant increase in their bills; and 
ii. Ratepayers occupying lower value properties. 

3.8 In line with these broad assumptions about how authorities will design their revaluation 
relief schemes, the Government has allocated resource to each billing authority by 
working out the total increase in bills (excluding the impact of transitional relief and 
other reliefs) for every rateable property in the billing authority’s area that satisfies both 
of the following criteria: 

 
a) The rateable property has a rateable value for 2017-18 that is less than 

£200,000; 
b) The increase in the rateable property’s 2017-18 bill is more than 12.5% 

compared to its 2016-17 bill (before reliefs). 

3.9 Whilst the policy is fully funded by the Government and some expectations have been 
laid out, local authorities must design their own schemes to fit their own circumstances.    

 

Page 30



Page 3 of 7 
 

3.10 From our analysis of the revaluation, 28% of businesses in Hyndburn have seen an 
increase in their rateable value as a result of the 2017 revaluation.  These businesses 
have seen an average increase of 29% in their rateable values, including 30 
assessments with an increase of over 100%. 

 
3.11 Options for Hyndburn’s scheme were consulted on from 20th July to 19th August 2017.  

In total we received 35 responses, 85% of which were responding on behalf of a 
business.  The results of the consultation are attached at Appendix 1. 

 
3.12 Overall, the option to allocate funding to small and medium businesses and 

independents was given the most support by respondents with 84% either agreeing or 
strongly agreeing to this proposal.   

 
3.13 The consultation asked respondents to give their views on excluding certain sectors 

from the revaluation relief scheme.  The responses received have informed the 
proposed scheme and it is intended that that the scheme excludes the following 
sectors: 

 
a) Financial services (e.g. banks, building societies, cash points, bureau de 

change, payday lenders, betting shops, pawn brokers); 
b) Medical services (e.g. health centres, vets, dentists, doctors, osteopaths, 

chiropractors); 
c) Professional Services (e.g. solicitors, accountants, insurance agents/financial 

advisors, tutors, funeral services); 
d) Post Office sorting offices;  
e) Other services (e.g. estate agents, letting agents, employment agencies, car 

showrooms); 
f) Properties that are operated by the same organisation / business. This applies 

where the business runs three or more properties in the U.K or in the U.K and 
overseas;  

g) Ratepayers in receipt of re-occupation relief in 2016/17 and 2017/18; 
h) Ratepayers taking up occupation of properties after 1 April 2017; 
i) Properties which were not on the rating list at 1 April 2017. (Relief will not apply 

where properties are entered into the list retrospectively); 
j) Properties which are unoccupied; 
k) Properties where any arrears due from 2016/17 or earlier are not cleared by 

31/05/17 or by arrangement with the Council; 
l) Where the award of relief would not comply with EU law on State Aid.  

 
3.14 In line with other transitional protections, the Discretionary Revaluation Relief Scheme 

will reduce annually and end after 2020/21 in line with scheme funding. The 

Page 31



Page 4 of 7 
 

Government has confirmed that there will be no flexibility to carry over unallocated 
funding into subsequent years within this period.1 

 
3.15 Businesses that have seen no change or a reduction in their rateable values will not be 

eligible for the scheme. 
 
3.16 Businesses wishing to apply for Discretionary Revaluation Relief will be asked to 

complete a short application form which will confirm their eligibility both for the scheme 
and compliance with EU State Aid regulations. 

 
3.17 The proposed scheme is outlined further at Appendix 2. 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 A failure to design and implement a Discretionary Revaluation Relief Scheme will result 

in the scheme funding being returned to the Government and local businesses missing 
out on vital financial support.  

 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Options for Hyndburn’s scheme were consulted on from 20th July to 19th August 2017.   
 
5.2 The consultation was available online, by email and in hard copy on request.  An 

invitation to respond was sent to 1,700 businesses by email and a further 1,500 by 
post.  Consultation invitations were sent to all members, local trade partners such as 
the Chamber of Commerce and local business rates preceptors.  All responses were 
received online. 

 
5.3 In total we received 35 responses, 85% of which were responding on behalf of a 

business.  A summary of the results and all comments are attached at Appendix 1.   
 
5.4 Overall, the option to allocate funding to small and medium businesses and 

independents was given the most support by respondents with 84% either agreeing or 
strongly agreeing to this proposal (62.5% strongly agreed).  

 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including any 
future financial commitments for the 
Council) 
 

Central government funding for the scheme is 
expected to be £156k over 3 years. The 
scheme funding is at no cost to the Council.   

Legal and human rights implications 
 

The Discretionary Revaluation Relief Scheme 
will be administered through the Council’s 
discretionary relief powers under section 47 
of the Local Government Act 1988. 

                                                      
1 https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/635223/17-07-
21_Marcus_Jones_MP_to_all_Local_authorties.pdf  

Page 32



Page 5 of 7 
 

Assessment of risk 
 

Awards must be applied to NNDR bills by the 
end of the financial year 2017/18 in order for 
local businesses to benefit from this scheme.  
The scheme is currently on schedule to 
achieve this. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

The Council is subject to the public sector 
equality duty introduced by the Equality Act 
2010. When making a decision in respect of 
the recommendations in this report Council 
must have regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation; and 

 advance equality of opportunity between 
those who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who don’t; and 

 foster good relations between those who 
share a relevant protected characteristic 
and those who don’t. 

For these purposes the relevant protected 
characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. To assist the Council in this 
regard a Customer First Analysis has been 
carried out in respect of the proposed 
scheme and is attached to this report at 
Appendix 3. Council will be advised to 
consider the Customer First Analysis and its 
obligations in respect of the public sector 
equality duty when making a decision in 
respect of the recommendations contained in 
this report. The CFA will be reviewed and 
updated when a final policy is being 
produced for approval. 

 
 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 

7.1 Cabinet Report, 19th July 2017: National Non Domestic Rates Revaluation Relief 
Scheme Consultation Report 

 
8. Freedom of Information 
 

Page 33



Page 6 of 7 
 

8.1 This report does not contain restricted or exempt information under the Local 
Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

 
 

Page 34



Page 7 of 7 
 

 

Page 35



28.13% 9

25.00% 8

18.75% 6

25.00% 8

3.13% 1

Q1 To what extent, if at all, do you agree with the proposal described
above to offer relief to all eligible businesses for revaluation relief as a

proportion of the increase in their business rate bills?
Answered: 32 Skipped: 3

TOTAL 32

Strongly agree

Agree

Unsure

Disagree

Strongly
Disagree

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Strongly agree

Agree

Unsure

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

1 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 36



Q2 Please tell us the reason for this
Answered: 22 Skipped: 13

# RESPONSES DATE

1 The money should be distributed to small rate payers 8/13/2017 4:25 PM

2 it should be allocated to small businesses only 8/12/2017 9:02 AM

3 I understand the need for transparency but believe larger organisations are better able to cope
with increases than smaller ones.

8/10/2017 10:27 AM

4 Seems fair 8/8/2017 6:00 PM

5 Relief would apply to National and Multinational organisations and should help medium and local
business owners

8/7/2017 3:35 PM

6 It should be targeted at those who have had significant increases to support the viability of local
businesses. If a business has had a reduction or no increase then no additional relief should be
applied

8/7/2017 5:17 AM

7 We are a school and have no form of acquiring extra income to pay for any increase. We rely on
the Government for funding which in the present economic climate if not forthcoming.

8/2/2017 11:46 AM

8 businesses employ people and keep the local economy buoyant 8/1/2017 1:07 PM

9 broadly, it appears a fair way to assess although it does not reconcile current discrepancies within
the rating system.

8/1/2017 11:11 AM

10 because my business gets small business rates relief and it will be a big jump in cost to have top
pay rates

7/30/2017 1:20 PM

11 Seems the fairest and easiest way of doing it. 7/27/2017 3:20 PM

12 my rates bill is far higher than I think it should be 7/26/2017 5:54 AM

13 Businesses such as our Childrens Nursery that just fall above the £12000 are still paying a
substantial amount of business rates even with relief (which was not applied to our in April).

7/25/2017 2:58 PM

14 Seems unfair. 7/23/2017 4:13 PM

15 Smaller business will require greater support than the large multinationals etc 7/22/2017 12:32 PM

16 It is fair to everybody 7/22/2017 7:37 AM

17 Relief should be aimed at the very smallest businesses because they are most likely to be of
recent inception and therefore have least resources. Reintroducing business rates will force many
small businesses out of operation. We rent out over 40 units and estimate that over 25 per cent
are struggling hand to mouth and just bringing in a charge of £1000 or more will send them out of
business. We keep our prices to an absolute minimum to attract small businesses but over the last
two years we find them struggling to pay even very low rents. The cost of business rates together
with water rates and energy costs which are up over 25 per cent in two years means that many
small businesses are struggling to cover their basic overheads. Rishton high st on which we have
6 shops is already desperate with many units already empty. Reintroduction of the rates will
remove at least three of these shops and there are no prospects for any new business ventures.
Rishton and now great harwood are already struggling please try not to introduce more non
productive costs. Business rates should be done away with completely.

7/21/2017 5:11 PM

18 Small businesses like myself are finding it hard without rates going up, rates of pay going up,
everything goes up apart from income

7/21/2017 5:09 PM

19 I think that any increase in any rates/services for any buisness definatley needs extra relief as
Accrington needs more stores, shops, and the only way is to offer incentives Accrington as a
shopping town is steadily disappering banks closing, marks and sparks going it needs help.

7/21/2017 3:58 PM

20 Businesses are being hit with massive cost increases from all sides, if some of these can be
mitigated somewhat it will help no end

7/21/2017 3:19 PM

2 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 37



21 Relief should be provided for those most in need with higher rates not just those that have had a
slight increase since April.

7/21/2017 3:16 PM

22 I think the relief should go to SMEs 7/20/2017 11:04 AM

3 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 38



62.50% 20

21.88% 7

6.25% 2

6.25% 2

3.13% 1

Q3 To what extent, if at all, do you agree with the option of giving
preference to small and medium sized firms and independents over

multinational and large national businesses when it comes to eligibility for
extra business rates relief for ‘revaluation support’?

Answered: 32 Skipped: 3

TOTAL 32

Strongly agree

Agree

Unsure

Disagree

Strongly
Disagree

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Strongly agree

Agree

Unsure

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

4 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 39



Q4 Please tell us the reason for this
Answered: 22 Skipped: 13

# RESPONSES DATE

1 We should not be paying any rates for the state what the town is in. We need the council to be
more active and making the town more appealing to visit.

8/17/2017 12:08 PM

2 The money should be distributed to small rate payers , irrespective of whether or not their rates bill
has increased. There are several thousand pounds being spent to create on promotion spaces,
the local authorities should be helping to encourage new businesses to set up in Hyndburn and
further helping existing businesses to succeed by marketing what they have to offer. it is
imperative HBC have regular contact with local stake holders and all small business operators in
the town. several business owners are refusing to take occupancy due to the absurd rates in the
town.

8/13/2017 5:12 PM

3 these are the businesses that need the relief most 8/12/2017 9:03 AM

4 Smaller organisations are less able to cope with increases. 8/10/2017 10:29 AM

5 Rates are a larger proportion of turnover to a small business 8/8/2017 6:01 PM

6 Small and medium business work on smaller profit margins and are likely to incur an increase in
rates payable

8/7/2017 3:36 PM

7 Agree in the main but consideration should be given as to whether this would impact the continued
presence of local branches/ units of these larger businesses - jobs no matter who the employer is
are critically important

8/7/2017 5:20 AM

8 all businesses should be charged the same .. big business have still got the same tariffs on
electric and staffing costs

8/1/2017 1:10 PM

9 As a borough, it is important to encourage the growth of SME's for future prosperity. The decisions
of national and multi national businesses will not generally be made with the interest of the
borough at heart. Also, the effect of a rate increase on an SME can be much more critical than on
a huge turnover business.

8/1/2017 11:18 AM

10 large multiples can effort the costs rather than the small independence/sme 7/30/2017 1:21 PM

11 Small business are local people trying to make a living and are already struggling 7/28/2017 12:08 PM

12 The larger companies probably employ the most people and so will be encouraged to stay in the
borough

7/27/2017 3:22 PM

13 small businesses at the moment are under threat because of constantly rising costs 7/26/2017 5:55 AM

14 Small businesses in Hyndburn are struggling to survive, they make Hyndburn unique and offer
valuable employment

7/25/2017 5:57 PM

15 This would be a huge benefit to the childcare industry that has been hit heavily with the
implementation of 30 free hours childcare on top of increases to business rates this year.

7/25/2017 2:59 PM

16 Seems fair 7/23/2017 4:13 PM

17 There is no reason why the size of a company should affect the assistance given 7/22/2017 7:38 AM

18 Smaller and medium businesses struggle with huge extra bills aswell as general costs of running
their business in the first place

7/21/2017 5:17 PM

19 Please read my prior rant 7/21/2017 5:12 PM

20 Accrington needs small buisness and independants to keep the town alive, 7/21/2017 4:00 PM

21 Larger businesses are able to absorb cost price increases much more easily than SMEs 7/21/2017 3:19 PM

22 Help the little man 7/21/2017 3:16 PM

5 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 40



Q5 Are there any circumstances when you believe that Hyndburn Council
should not favour distributing extra business rates relief for Revaluation

Relief because it would be against the local community or public’s
interest?

Answered: 19 Skipped: 16

# RESPONSES DATE

1 none 8/12/2017 9:03 AM

2 It should be fair to all and not favour particular groups because of religious or political reasons. 8/10/2017 10:32 AM

3 New supermarkets 8/8/2017 6:02 PM

4 Maybe -see next page 8/7/2017 3:39 PM

5 Jobs are critical and if the business is legal why favour some sectors over another unless linked
directly to a larger initiative to build a reputation for centres of excellence in certain sectors? I see
no evidence of this so disagree with this proposal

8/7/2017 5:23 AM

6 no 8/2/2017 11:19 AM

7 no ... if all businesses go to an other area then the local community will suffer - loss of jobs and
empty buildings

8/1/2017 1:12 PM

8 I suspect that if there are businesses that are against the local community or public interest, then
they would be excluded from any relief.

8/1/2017 11:20 AM

9 No 7/27/2017 3:22 PM

10 no 7/26/2017 5:56 AM

11 I think the council should be stronger in not allowing businesses that are causing public nusience
problems. They are already wasting tax payers money due to the heavy police presences required
to manage incidents.

7/25/2017 3:04 PM

12 I don't believe the council are particularly well placed to manage the allocation 7/24/2017 12:41 PM

13 No 7/23/2017 4:14 PM

14 No 7/22/2017 7:38 AM

15 No 7/21/2017 6:06 PM

16 No 7/21/2017 5:12 PM

17 There should be a limit on say specialist shops like, kebab shops and take ways this should be
limited to so many per town centre or area, or worked out by the population of a town ? this is how
it works in italy and other countrys they cant all be busy?

7/21/2017 4:08 PM

18 No 7/21/2017 3:17 PM

19 Banks, financial services and companies selling tobacco and/or vaping products 7/20/2017 11:05 AM

6 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 41



Q6 From the list below, please identify any types of business or sectors
that you believe we should exclude from the Revaluation Relief Scheme:

Answered: 21 Skipped: 14

betting and
gambling...

vape lounges

empty and
vacant units...

pawnbrokers
and pay day...

banks and
building...

fast food
outlets

estate and/or
letting agents

health centres

supermarkets
and discount...

telecommunicati
ons network...

Other (please
specify)

pubs

employment
agencies

doctors and GP
surgeries

accountants,
insurance...

foreign
exchange

petrol
stations and...

solicitors and
law agencies

7 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 42



post office
and delivery...

charity shops

taxi services

coffee shops

restaurants

health remedy
shops

tattoo and
piercing...

car dealers or
showrooms

cinemas

leisure centres

hotels,
hostels and...

household
goods stores

offices

storage and
warehousing

bakeries

butchers

grocery stores

food
delicatessen...

pharmacists or
chemists

opticians

osteopaths and
chiropractors

8 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 43



beauticians
and tanning...

car and
vehicle...

travel agents

gyms

antique and
secondhand...

workshops

manufacturing
sites and...

hairdressers
and barbers

electronic,
computing an...

funeral
services

photography
services

dry cleaners

shoe repair
shops

jewellers

vets and pet
grooming

local
convenience...

furniture shops

book shops

stationary,
card and gif...

florist and
garden stores

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

9 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 44



61.90% 13

57.14% 12

52.38% 11

42.86% 9

38.10% 8

33.33% 7

23.81% 5

23.81% 5

23.81% 5

23.81% 5

23.81% 5

19.05% 4

19.05% 4

19.05% 4

19.05% 4

19.05% 4

19.05% 4

19.05% 4

19.05% 4

19.05% 4

14.29% 3

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

9.52% 2

4.76% 1

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

betting and gambling premises

vape lounges

empty and vacant units or properties

pawnbrokers and pay day lenders

banks and building societies

fast food outlets

estate and/or letting agents

health centres

supermarkets and discount stores

telecommunications network facilities

Other (please specify)

pubs

employment agencies

doctors and GP surgeries

accountants, insurance agents and financial advisors

foreign exchange

petrol stations and car wash

solicitors and law agencies

post office and delivery sorting offices

charity shops

taxi services

coffee shops

restaurants

health remedy shops

tattoo and piercing parlours

car dealers or showrooms

cinemas

leisure centres

hotels, hostels and B&Bs

household goods stores

offices

storage and warehousing

bakeries

10 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 45



4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

4.76% 1

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Total Respondents: 21  

# OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY) DATE

1 none - all small businesses should benefit 8/12/2017 9:04 AM

2 Schools 8/2/2017 11:48 AM

3 none all should be the same 8/1/2017 1:14 PM

4 Government Funded Properties 8/1/2017 11:30 AM

5 charities are exempt anyway 7/24/2017 12:42 PM

butchers

grocery stores

food delicatessen stores

pharmacists or chemists

opticians

osteopaths and chiropractors

beauticians and tanning salons

car and vehicle mechanics and repairs

travel agents

gyms

antique and secondhand shops

workshops

manufacturing sites and factories

hairdressers and barbers

electronic, computing and phone shops/services

funeral services

photography services

dry cleaners

shoe repair shops

jewellers

vets and pet grooming

local convenience stores and newsagents

furniture shops

book shops

stationary, card and gift shops

florist and garden stores

11 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 46



Q7 We welcome your ideas or suggestions to further shape the proposals
for the distribution of the extra relief.

Answered: 9 Skipped: 26

# RESPONSES DATE

1 take a look at the Accrington town centre - its empty , rates need to be cut or the town will die off 8/12/2017 9:04 AM

2 give greater relief to the businesses paying more and less to the businesses paying less 8/7/2017 3:44 PM

3 Should an element of the funding be targeted at start ups / young businesses to encourage growth
of new enterprise?

8/7/2017 5:25 AM

4 share it out to all 8/1/2017 1:14 PM

5 priority should be given to to local manufacturing businesses that are investing in future growth. 8/1/2017 11:32 AM

6 SME's and independants need help more than larger businesses and national businesses 7/30/2017 1:27 PM

7 Everyone will feel their business should benefit, but I feel the council should take a view on the
sectors that are facing heavy increase in costs due to government policies such as childcare costs
relating to the 30 hours. If independent and private settings could achieve better business rate
relief, they have a better chance of remaining in business longer and generating income for the
council longer term.

7/25/2017 3:10 PM

8 I think that start up buisness need extra relief along with shops that try to expand OR create more
jobs. also anybody who brings buisness/employment into the area, should be given incentives,
grants etc,

7/21/2017 4:13 PM

9 Keep pubs open 7/21/2017 3:18 PM

12 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 47



46.43% 13

39.29% 11

0.00% 0

10.71% 3

3.57% 1

Q8 What is your gender?
Answered: 28 Skipped: 7

TOTAL 28

# NOT LISTED (PLEASE SPECIFY) DATE

1 private company 8/2/2017 11:22 AM

Female

Male

Transgender

Prefer not to
say

Not listed
(please...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Female

Male

Transgender

Prefer not to say

Not listed (please specify)

13 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 48



25.93% 7

59.26% 16

0.00% 0

3.70% 1

0.00% 0

7.41% 2

3.70% 1

Q9 What is your religion?
Answered: 27 Skipped: 8

TOTAL 27

# NOT LISTED (PLEASE SPECIFY) DATE

1 sikh 7/23/2017 4:14 PM

None

Christian

Muslim

Hindu

Jewish

Prefer not to
say

Not listed
(please...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

None

Christian

Muslim

Hindu

Jewish

Prefer not to say

Not listed (please specify)

14 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 49



85.19% 23

3.70% 1

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

7.41% 2

3.70% 1

Q10 What is your sexual orientation?
Answered: 27 Skipped: 8

TOTAL 27

# NOT LISTED (PLEASE SPECIFY) DATE

1 n/a 8/2/2017 11:22 AM

Heterosexual/St
raight

Gay
woman/Lesbian

Gay man

Bisexual/Bi

Prefer not to
say

Not listed
(please...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Heterosexual/Straight

Gay woman/Lesbian

Gay man

Bisexual/Bi

Prefer not to say

Not listed (please specify)

15 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 50



84.62% 22

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

3.85% 1

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q11 What is your ethnicity?
Answered: 26 Skipped: 9

White British

White European

Asian British

Asian Pakistani

Asian Indian

Asian Chinese

Black British

Black Caribbean

Black African

Mixed/multiple
ethnicity

Prefer not to
say

Not listed
(please...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

White British

White European

Asian British

Asian Pakistani

Asian Indian

Asian Chinese

Black British

Black Caribbean

16 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 51



3.85% 1

0.00% 0

3.85% 1

3.85% 1

TOTAL 26

# NOT LISTED (PLEASE SPECIFY) DATE

1 n/a 8/2/2017 11:22 AM

Black African

Mixed/multiple ethnicity

Prefer not to say

Not listed (please specify)

17 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 52



3.70% 1

92.59% 25

3.70% 1

Q12 Do you consider yourself to be disabled?
Answered: 27 Skipped: 8

TOTAL 27

Yes

No

Prefer not to
say

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Prefer not to say

18 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 53



3.70% 1

96.30% 26

Q13 Are you an expectant mother or have you given birth in the last 12
months?

Answered: 27 Skipped: 8

TOTAL 27

Yes

No

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

19 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 54



85.19% 23

14.81% 4

Q14 Have you responded to this consultation on behalf of a business in
Hyndburn?

Answered: 27 Skipped: 8

TOTAL 27

Yes

No

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

20 / 20

2017 Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme SurveyMonkey

Page 55



National	Non	Domestic	Rates	

2017	Revaluation	Relief	Scheme

August 2017 

Page 56



1.	 Introduction	

1.1 In the spring 2017 Budget, the Government announced a series of temporary 
financial support schemes for businesses affected by the revaluation of 
National Non Domestic Rates effective from April 2017. This document covers 
Hyndburn Borough Council’s policy on: 

� Supporting Small Businesses Relief 

� Business Rate Relief Scheme for Pubs 

� Discretionary Revaluation Relief Scheme 

2.	 Supporting	Small	Businesses	Relief	

2.1 The standard transitional relief scheme provides for changes to rateable values 
and does not provide support in respect of changes in relief such as small 
business rates relief and so the Supporting Small Businesses Relief is available 
to business rates payers who, as a result of the revaluation, are losing some or 
all of their small business or rural rate relief and are facing large increases as a 
result. 

2.2 This relief will ensure that the increase per year in the bills of these ratepayers 
is limited to the greater of: 

� A cash value of £600 per year (£50 per month).  This cash minimum 

increase ensures that those ratepayers currently paying nothing or very 

small amounts are brought into paying something, or 

� The matching cap on increases for small properties in the transitional 

relief scheme. 

3.	 Business	Rate	Relief	Scheme	for	Pubs		

3.1 The Government has also announced a new relief scheme for pubs that have a 
rateable value below £100,000. Under the scheme, eligible pubs will receive up 
to £1000 discount on their bill.  The relief will apply only to 2017/18.  

3.2 Eligibility criteria have been sent to local authorities who will contact eligible 
pubs directly to notify them of how to apply for the relief. 

4.	 Proposed	Discretionary	Revaluation	Relief	Scheme	(DRRS)	

4.1 At the spring 2017 Budget the Government announced a £300m discretionary 
fund over four years from 2017-18 to support those businesses that face the 
steepest increases in their business rates bills as a result of the 2017 
revaluation.  

4.2 The intention is that every billing authority in England will be provided with a 
share of the £300m to support their local businesses. Billing authorities are 
expected to use their share of the funding to develop their own discretionary 

Page 57



relief schemes to deliver targeted support to the most hard-pressed ratepayers. 
The £300m will cover the four years from 2017/18:  

� £175m in 2017/18  

� £85m in 2018/19  

� £35m in 2019/20  

� £5m in 2020/21  

4.3 To allocate these resources, the Government has assumed that local 

authorities will provide support only to those businesses who are facing an 

increase in their bills following revaluation – and have made this a condition of 

the grant.  It further assumes that, by and large, more support will be provided 

to; 

� Businesses/ratepayers that face the most significant increase in their       

bills; and 

� Ratepayers occupying lower value properties. 

4.4 In line with these broad assumptions about how local authorities will design 

their revaluation relief schemes, the Government has allocated resource to 

each billing authority by working out the total increase in bills (excluding the 

impact of transitional relief and other reliefs), for every rateable property in the 

billing authority’s area that satisfies both of the following criteria: 

a. The rateable property has a rateable value for 2017-18 that is less than 

£200,000; 

b. The increase in the rateable property’s 2017-18 bill is more than 12.5% 

compared to its 2016-17 bill (before reliefs). 

4.5 Funding for Hyndburn is: 

Amount of discretionary pot awarded (£000s)

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

100 38 16 2

5.	 Consultation	

5.1 Hyndburn Borough Council’s draft DRRS was put to public consultation from 
20th July 2017 to 19th August 2017.  The results of this consultation have 
informed this policy. 

Page 58



6.	 Scheme	principles	

6.1 The basic principles underpinning this policy proposal are:  

� The Council wishes to operate in a fair and transparent way ensuring 

its powers are used sensibly, consistently and coherently to benefit 

the community as a whole;  

� The Council wants to deliver its services through a sound and well 

maintained corporate governance framework that provides clarity on 

the number and value of awards made;  

6.2 In line with the Government’s recommendations outlined in paragraphs 4.3 and 
4.4, the Council will provide support only to those businesses that are facing an 
increase in their business rates bills following the 2017 revaluation (this is a 
condition of the grant).   

6.3 This policy will also follow Government expectation in that it will aim to support 
businesses facing the most significant increase in their bills and those who are 
occupying lower value properties. 

6.4 The Discretionary Revaluation Relief will not be considered for the following 
types of businesses: 

a) Financial services (e.g. banks, building societies, cash points, bureau 

de change, payday lenders, betting shops, pawn brokers); 

b) Medical services (e.g. health centres, vets, dentists, doctors, 

osteopaths, chiropractors); 

c) Professional Services (e.g. solicitors, accountants, insurance 

agents/financial advisors, tutors, funeral services); 

d) Post Office sorting offices;  

e) Other services (e.g. estate agents, letting agents, employment 

agencies, car showrooms); 

f) Properties that are operated by the same organisation/business. This 

applies where the business runs three or more properties in the U.K 

or in the U.K and overseas;  

g) Ratepayers in receipt of re-occupation relief in 2016/17 and/or 

2017/18; 

h) Ratepayers taking up occupation of properties after 1 April 2017; 

i) Properties which were not on the rating list at 1 April 2017. (Relief will 

not apply where properties are entered into the list retrospectively); 

j) Properties which are unoccupied; 

k) Properties where any arrears due from 2016/17 or earlier were not 

cleared by 31/05/17 or by arrangement with the Council; 

l) Where the award of relief would not comply with EU law on State Aid.  

Page 59



7. How	Discretionary	Revaluation	Relief	will	be	calculated	

7.1 Discretionary Revaluation Relief is calculated after any or all of the following 
have been applied:  

a) Exemptions and other Reliefs;  

b) Transitional Relief or Premium;  

and after the application of the Business Rates Supplement. Discretionary 
Revaluation Relief does not apply to the supplement. 

8.	 State	Aid	

8.1 State Aid law is the means by which the European Union regulates state 
funded support to businesses. Providing discretionary relief to ratepayers is 
likely to amount to State Aid. However the support for ratepayers will be State 
Aid compliant where it is provided in accordance with the De Minimis 
Regulations (1407/2013)2.  

8.2 The De Minimis Regulations allow an undertaking to receive up to €200,000 of 
De Minimis aid in a three year period (consisting of the current financial year 
and the two previous financial years).  

8.3 To administer De Minimis it is necessary for the Council to establish that the 
award of aid will not result in the undertaking having received more than 
€200,000 of De Minimis aid. Further information on State Aid law can be found 
at https://www.gov.uk/state-aid

9.	 Managing	the	Process		

9.1 To ensure transparency, fairness and consistency, businesses must meet 
eventual scheme criteria and any consideration to award relief under this policy 
will only be considered after the signing of the State Aid declaration.

9.2 All applications must use the standard application form with additional 
supporting information attached.  The Council will encourage emailed 
applications wherever possible to support our e-services agenda.  

10.	 Decisions	and	awards	

10.1 This is a discretionary scheme; there is no right of appeal on any decision 
made.  Any requests for a revision will be dealt with on a case by case basis. 

10.2 Awards of Discretionary Rate Relief will be deducted from ongoing business 
rates liability which will reduce the overall bill for the ratepayer.  There is no 
cash alternative to an award.   

10.3 Any overpaid awards, either as a result of applicant misrepresentation, local 
authority error or an adjustment in the rateable value of the property will be 
recovered from the ratepayer directly. 

Page 60



11.	 Scheme	Review	

11.1 This scheme will be reviewed annually, or sooner should the Government 
announce any changes to criteria, eligibility or funding levels. 

12.	 Complaints	

12.1 The Council’s Complaints Procedure will apply in the event of any complaint 
about the application of this policy. 

13.	 Equalities	

13.1 This policy is accompanied by a Customer First Analysis which has been 
produced in response to the Council’s obligation to the Public Sector Equality 
Duty as outlined in the Equality Act 2010.  No adverse impact on any protected 
characteristic has been identified as a result of this policy. 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of Last Meeting
	3. Appointment of Co-optees
	4. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 2017-18
	5. Legal and Democratic Services  -  Service Plan Update
	6. National Non Domestic Rates Revaluation Support Scheme
	Overview and Scrutiny Report FINAL
	Consultation Responses Final
	Q1 To what extent, if at all, do you agree with the proposal described above to offer relief to all eligible businesses for revaluation relief as a proportion of the increase in their business rate bills?
	Q2 Please tell us the reason for this
	Q3 To what extent, if at all, do you agree with the option of giving preference to small and medium sized firms and independents over multinational and large national businesses when it comes to eligibility for extra business rates relief for ‘revaluation support’?
	Q4 Please tell us the reason for this
	Q5 Are there any circumstances when you believe that Hyndburn Council should not favour distributing extra business rates relief for Revaluation Relief because it would be against the local community or public’s interest?
	Q6 From the list below, please identify any types of business or sectors that you believe we should exclude from the Revaluation Relief Scheme:
	Q7 We welcome your ideas or suggestions to further shape the proposals for the distribution of the extra relief.
	Q8 What is your gender?
	Q9 What is your religion?
	Q10 What is your sexual orientation?
	Q11 What is your ethnicity?
	Q12 Do you consider yourself to be disabled?
	Q13 Are you an expectant mother or have you given birth in the last 12 months?
	Q14 Have you responded to this consultation on behalf of a business in Hyndburn?

	NNDR Revaluation Relief 2017 FINAL


